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Deb Estrada

From: Andrea Larson
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 1:42 PM
To: Alison Van Gorp; Deb Estrada
Subject: FW: Stroum JCC Rezone Request

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Comment received to Planning Commission mailbox 
 
Andrea Larson 
City Clerk 
City of Mercer Island 
206.275.7793 | mercerisland.gov 
 
No ce: Emails and a achments may be subject to disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Act (chapter 42.56 RCW) 

The City of Mercer Island u lizes a hybrid working environment. Please see the City’s Facility and Program Informa on page for City Hall and City 
service hours of opera on. 

 

From: Bruce Kahn <bruce@foundationgroupre.com>  
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 12:53 PM 
To: Planning Commission <Planning.Commission@mercergov.org> 
Subject: Stroum JCC Rezone Request 
 

Dear Mercer Island Planning Commission,  

Please recommend that the Mercer Island City Council places the Stroum Jewish Community Center’s request to rezone 
their large residential land parcels to Commercial Office on the docket, with action taken in 2024. 

For over 54 years, the SJCC has served Mercer Island residents with programs for all ages and all are welcome. However, 
this building is old, is not ADA compliant, needs a working HVAC system and it features a swimming pool that is long past 
its usefulness. 

It’s time for a substantive, accessible, and sustainable redevelopment, yet the current residential zoning makes this 
nearly impossible. A rezone to Commercial Office property would significantly facilitate this remodel while honoring the 
neighborhood integrity and specific interests of the proximate neighbors. 

For over 54 years, the SJCC has operated as a vital community asset. It would be a loss for the broad Mercer Island 
community to not support the modernization of this facility. Further, this request affects the SJCC ONLY, and will not 
have any impact on any other facility or institution on the Island. 

The time to support the future of the Stroum Jewish Community Center on Mercer Island is now.  

Thank you for your support.  
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Deb Estrada

From: Andrea Larson
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 1:43 PM
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
 
NoƟce: Emails and aƩachments may be subject to disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Act (chapter 42.56 RCW) 
The City of Mercer Island uƟlizes a hybrid working environment. Please see the City’s Facility and Program InformaƟon 
page for City Hall and City service hours of operaƟon. 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: lolly locke <lollylocke@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 1:36 PM 
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
their large residenƟal land parcels to Commercial Office on the docket, with acƟon taken in 2024. 
 
For over 54 years, the SJCC has served Mercer Island residents with programs for all ages and all are welcome. However, 
this building is old, is not ADA compliant, needs a working HVAC system and it features a swimming pool that is long past 
its usefulness. 
 
It’s Ɵme for a substanƟve, accessible, and sustainable redevelopment, yet the current residenƟal zoning makes this 
nearly impossible. A rezone to Commercial Office property would significantly facilitate this remodel while honoring the 
neighborhood integrity and specific interests of the proximate neighbors. 
 
For over 54 years, the SJCC has operated as a vital community asset. It would be a loss for the broad Mercer Island 
community to not support the modernizaƟon of this facility. Further, this request affects the SJCC ONLY, and will not have 
any impact on any other facility or insƟtuƟon on the Island. 
 
The Ɵme to support the future of the Stroum Jewish Community Center on Mercer Island is now. 
 
Thank you for your support. 
 
Alyson Locke 
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Deb Estrada

From: Andrea Larson
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 3:43 PM
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
From: Andree Brooks <andreebrooks@hotmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 1:46 PM 
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
 
 
Andree Brooks 
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1115 108th Ave NE su.537 
Bellevue WA 98004 
USA 
Cell: 203 722 1613 
Hm/office 425 502 7483 
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Deb Estrada

From: Andrea Larson
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 3:44 PM
To: Alison Van Gorp; Deb Estrada
Subject: FW: Jewish Community Center Request

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

 

From: Tricia Breen <Breen.Tricia@comcast.net>  
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 2:08 PM 
To: Planning Commission <Planning.Commission@mercergov.org> 
Subject: Fwd: Jewish Community Center Request 
 
 

 

 
Subject: Jewish Community Center Request for Rezone 

Dear Mercer Island Planning Commission, 
I am writing to request that you expedite and approve a rezone of the Stroum JCC to Office Commercial. 
Doing so will allow the JCC to complete much needed facility updates without affecting their neighbors 
or nearby properties. The JCC is a vital community resource for all families of Mercer Island, (not only 
Jewish). It is an important preschool, recreational and social facility where people of all faiths gather. 
Please consider this request which will make Mercer Island an even better place to live! Thank you for 
your consideration. 
Sincerely 
Patricia Breen 
Richard Fruchter 
2246 80th Ave SE 
Mercer Island 
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Deb Estrada

From: Andrea Larson
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 4:59 PM
To: Alison Van Gorp; Deb Estrada
Subject: FW: Plz support the JCC Rezone Request

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

 

From: Senn, Rep. Tana <Tana.Senn@leg.wa.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 3:58 PM 
To: Planning Commission <Planning.Commission@mercergov.org> 
Subject: Plz support the JCC Rezone Request 
 

Dear Mercer Island Planning Commission,  

I write to request that you please recommend that the Mercer Island City Council place the Stroum Jewish Community 
Center’s request to rezone their large residential land parcels to Commercial Office on the docket, with action taken in 
2024. 

The SJCC has been an amazing asset to the community for 54 years. Similar to the City Hall, the building is old, is not ADA 
compliant, needs a working HVAC system, and it features a swimming pool that is long past its usefulness.  

It’s time for a substantive, accessible, and sustainable redevelopment, yet the current residential zoning makes this 
nearly impossible. A rezone to Commercial Office property would significantly facilitate this remodel while honoring the 
neighborhood integrity and specific interests of the proximate neighbors. Further, this request affects the SJCC ONLY, 
and will not have any impact on any other facility or institution on the Island. 

Please support the future of the Stroum Jewish Community Center on Mercer Island with support of the zoning change.  

Thank you, 

Tana Senn 
8426 SE 47th Street 
Mercer Island, WA 98040 
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Deb Estrada

From: Andrea Larson
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 5:00 PM
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
From: michael gluck <gasm1g@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 4:21 PM 
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
Michael Gluck, MD 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
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Deb Estrada

From: Andrea Larson
Sent: Monday, November 13, 2023 9:08 AM
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

 

From: sooperdoc@aol.com <sooperdoc@aol.com>  
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 8:18 PM 
To: Planning Commission <Planning.Commission@mercergov.org> 
Subject: Stroum JCC Rezone Request 
 

Dear Mercer Island Planning Commission, Please recommend that the Mercer Island City Council 
places the Stroum Jewish Community Center’s request to rezone their large residential land parcels 
to Commercial Office on the docket, with action taken in 2024. For over 54 years, the SJCC has 
served Mercer Island residents with programs for all ages and all are welcome. However, this building 
is old, is not ADA compliant, needs a working HVAC system and it features a swimming pool that is 
long past its usefulness. It’s time for a substantive, accessible, and sustainable redevelopment, yet 
the current residential zoning makes this nearly impossible. A rezone to Commercial Office property 
would significantly facilitate this remodel while honoring the neighborhood integrity and specific 
interests of the proximate neighbors. For over 54 years, the SJCC has operated as a vital community 
asset. It would be a loss for the broad Mercer Island community to not support the modernization of 
this facility. Further, this request affects the SJCC ONLY, and will not have any impact on any other 
facility or institution on the Island. The time to support the future of the Stroum Jewish Community 
Center on Mercer Island is now. Thank you for your support. 
 
Dr. Arnold Reich 
Mercer Island resident for fifty years. 
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Deb Estrada

From: Andrea Larson
Sent: Monday, November 13, 2023 9:09 AM
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
 
Notice: Emails and attachments may be subject to disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Act (chapter 42.56 RCW) 

The City of Mercer Island utilizes a hybrid working environment. Please see the City’s Facility and Program Information page for City Hall and City 
service hours of operation. 

 

From: Reanne Berkstresser <reanneb15@gmail.com>  
Sent: Friday, November 10, 2023 5:44 AM 
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
 
Reanne Berkstresser 
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

 

From: Lorin Freedman <lorin.freedman@gmail.com>  
Sent: Friday, November 10, 2023 1:46 PM 
To: Planning Commission <Planning.Commission@mercergov.org> 
Subject: Stroum JCC Rezone Request 
 
Dear Mercer Island Planning Commission, 

I live in Mercer Island (3206 90th Pl SE) with my wife and 2 children. We learned about Mercer Island around the birth of 
our first child in 2017 and we enrolled him in the Early Childhood School there. We were so impressed with the school 
and the surrounding community that we moved here last year. The J has been of great importance to us and we believe 
that its expansion is in the community's interest. 
 
I therefore ask that you recommend that the Mercer Island City Council places the Stroum Jewish Community Center’s 
request to rezone their large residential land parcels to Commercial Office on the docket, with action taken in 2024. 
 
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
 
Lorin Freedman 



From: Andrea Larson
To: Alison Van Gorp; Deb Estrada
Subject: FW: Nov. 15 Planning Commission Meeting/ 2024 Annual Docket/Objection To Staff"s Report/Public Comments

On Suggested Amendment 18
Date: Monday, November 13, 2023 9:09:37 AM

Comment received to Planning Commission mailbox
 
Andrea Larson
City Clerk
City of Mercer Island
206.275.7793 | mercerisland.gov
 
Notice: Emails and attachments may be subject to disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Act (chapter 42.56 RCW)
The City of Mercer Island utilizes a hybrid working environment. Please see the City’s Facility and Program Information page
for City Hall and City service hours of operation.

 

From: Dan Thompson <danielpthompson@hotmail.com> 
Sent: Friday, November 10, 2023 2:33 PM
To: Alison Van Gorp <alison.vangorp@mercergov.org>
Cc: Jeff Thomas <jeff.thomas@mercerisland.gov>; Jessi Bon <jessi.bon@mercergov.org>; Planning
Commission <Planning.Commission@mercergov.org>; Council <council@mercergov.org>
Subject: Nov. 15 Planning Commission Meeting/ 2024 Annual Docket/Objection To Staff's
Report/Public Comments On Suggested Amendment 18
 
Dear Alison, council and planning commission,
 
 
 
I have read the recently released agenda packet for the Nov. 15 Planning Commission
meeting.  TEM-Attachment-001-319c9a30e91a44a1a0d70b70ccc915a2.pdf
(usgovcloudapi.net)  To say that it is unusual and deficient would be a gross understatement. 
Please consider these my public comments on Suggested Amendment 18, the rezone of the
JCC properties from single family residential to commercial office, as well as my comments
from Nov. 9 at the bottom of this email.
 
If there is one basic error in staff's report it is the report fails to understand amendment 18
is not about uses, it is about the ability of a single CUP in the residential zone to obtain
much greater regulatory limits than the surrounding residential zone or other CUP's.  The
CUP already enjoys a conditional use.  The only question is whether the conditional use
should also enjoy greater regulatory limits than houses in the same residential zone.
 
 
1.  SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT.
 

mailto:andrea.larson@mercergov.org
mailto:Alison.VanGorp@mercergov.org
mailto:Deborah.Estrada@mercerisland.gov
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A.  This process is not just unusual but deficient.  The public has not been advised of the
reasons for questioning the planning commission members over conflicts of interest or the
appearance of conflicts, public comments received to date are not attached to staff's report,
and the commission members themselves are left to decide whether to recuse themselves if
there is the appearance of a conflict when recusal needs to be made by a third party with legal
expertise.  The public is left with the definite impression the city knows something it is not
revealing.
 
B.  Staff's report is woefully deficient, and fails to recite the history of this property,  and the
30-year history of attempts to obtain preferential regulatory limits beyond those allowed in
the CUP and residential zone.
 
C.  A conditional use permit already receives zoning benefits that are not allowed for the
houses in the surrounding residential zone, including the non-conforming conditional use, no
internal yard setbacks, and increased impervious surface limits for parking.
 
D.  A fundamental concept for non-conforming conditional use permits is the non-conforming
use does not also receive preferential regulatory limits above those allowed to conforming
uses.
 
E.  Staff's report fails to educate the planning commission on Administrative Interpretation 
22-004 that was just issued last year for this very same property, and outlines all the elements
of the comprehensive plan than prevent a CUP from upzoning residentially zoned property or
applying for a variance to obtain preferential regulatory limits.
 
F.  The JCC's application to upzone its residential zoned properties to CO is either an illegal
spot zone contrary to MICC 19.15.240(C)(4), or it must be available to every other property
owner in the SFH residential zone, including other CUP's and conforming uses like single family
homes.  This amendment effectively eliminates the SFH residential zone on MI.  Yet staff's
report is silent on this critical issue even though it admits the application is site specific.
 
 
 
2.  APPEARANCE OF FAIRNESS DOCTRINE.   THE COMMISSIONERS THEMSELVES CANNOT
DECIDE IF THEY HAVE A CONFLICT OR APPEARANCE OF A CONFLICT.
 
 
The hearing will begin with a voir dire of planning commission members, followed by the
opportunity of the public to question members on their answers, although the public has not
been provided any  basis for this unusual process, or what has triggered it.  But even then,
staff's report states:  "Commissioners may respond to any challenges and then would need



to make their own decision as to whether or not to recuse themselves from these
proceedings".
 
How can the commissioners themselves be allowed to make the decision whether they can be
fair, or whether they appear to be fair?  A neutral third party with legal expertise must make
that determination because obviously a conflicted planning commission member can't see
that, or the appearance of a conflict, themselves.  This highly unusual process definitely leaves
the public with the impression that the city knows something it is not revealing about the
fairness of this hearing.
 
 
3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE NOT ATTACHED TO STAFF'S REPORT.
 
 
No public comments received to date have been attached to staff's report.  The report
states:  
 
"ATTACHMENTS" 
 
"1. Docket Application filed by the Stroum Jewish Community Center. 
 
"2. Written public comments (forthcoming)."
 
How can the planning commission make a decision on amendment 18 without having
reviewed any public comments until the day of the hearing, and how can it review them all on
the day of the meeting?  The entire purpose of the planning commission is to determine
public sentiment on a proposed action (and the Community Facilities Zone would seem to be a
good indication of public support for amendment 18  but staff's report is silent on that too). 
 
Furthermore, how can members of the public prepare to challenge the fairness or appearance
of fairness of the planning commission members without having the ability to review public
comments before the hearing, or what the city is not telling us?
 
 
4  STAFF'S DOCKETING CRITERIA.
 
 
Staff's identification of the relevant docketing criteria is woefully deficient, especially when it
comes to the relevant elements of the comprehensive plan.  Staff's report simply states:
 
 
"Docketing Criteria:
 



"4. The proposal will serve the public interest by implementing specifically identified goals
of the comprehensive plan or a new approach supporting the city’s vision; Relevant goals
and policies from the current Comprehensive Plan include: 
 
"GOAL 17: With the exception of allowing residential development, commercial
designations and permitted uses under current zoning will not change".
 
"Policy 17.4: Social and recreation clubs, schools, and religious institutions are
predominantly located in single family residential areas of the Island. Development
regulation should reflect the desire to retain viable and healthy social, recreational,
educational, and religious organizations as community assets which are essential for the
mental, physical and spiritual health of Mercer Island. The Comprehensive Plan discourages
changes to commercial land use designations. However, it also encourages development
regulations that support retention of “viable and healthy social, recreational, educational
and religious organizations” as an essential component oof Mercer Island."
 
 
Amendment 18 is about changing SFH residential zoning to CO zoning to obtain regulatory
limits not allowed in the residential zone.  Retaining viable and healthy social, recreational,
educational and religious organizations does not require one CUP to have much greater
regulatory limits under CO zoning as the surrounding residential zone or other CUP's.
 
 
 
5.  AMENDMENT 18 IS ABOUT CHANGING RESIDENTIAL ZONING TO COMMERCIAL, NOT
COMMERCIAL TO RESIDENTIAL ZONING, TO OBTAIN GREATER REGULATORY LIMITS.
 
 
Amendment 18 is not about changing commercial zoning and regulatory limits to residential
zoning, it is about changing residential zoning and regulatory limits  to commercial.  Basically
substituting the regulatory limits for a single family house for The Hadley.
 
Staff's report completely ignores the long history of this property and efforts to increase its
regulatory limits, which was fully laid out in the recent litigation over the JCC's applications for
variances for this property, which is summarized in Amendment 13, and the litigation over the
CFZ.  ITEM-Attachment-001-d231bdea5a3c4588a4bf81c9709f6182.pdf (usgovcloudapi.net) 
pages 7-8. Let's Talk cite:  2024 Annual Docket of Proposed Comprehensive Plan and
Development Code Amendments | Let's Talk Mercer Island (mercergov.org).
 
 
6.  ADMINISTRATIVE INTERPRETATION 22-004.  A CUP CANNOT APPLY LET ALONE OBTAIN
A VARIANCE FROM THE REGULATORY LIMITS IN THE RESIDENTIAL ZONE.
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As part of the JCC's application for variances the city hired outside legal counsel to prepare a
memo addressing whether a CUP has standing to even apply for a variance in the SFH zone. 
Based on this memo, Jeff Thomas issued Administrative Interpretation 22-004, which staff's
report for amendment 18 completely ignores in its report to the Planning Commission.
 
 
AI 22-004 DSG ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY DETERMINATION (mercerisland.gov) lays out all the
elements of the comprehensive plan that discourage or prevent a CUP from upzoning
residential properties in the CUP, or even applying for a variance.  
 
AI 22-004 states:
 
 
"(4.) Policy direction provided by the Mercer Island comprehensive plan; 
 
"Analysis: Review of the Comprehensive Plan results in the following findings: 
 
"(1) The Comprehensive Plan envisions Mercer Island as a residential community: 
 
"(a) “Mercer Island prides itself on being a residential community. As such, most of the
Island's approximately 6.2 square miles of land area is developed with single family
homes.” [Land Use Element, Introduction] 
 
"(b) “Single family residential zoning accounts for 88 percent of the Island's land use. There
are 3,534 acres zoned for single family residential development. This compares to 77 acres
in the Town Center zones, 19 acres for Commercial Office zone, and 103 acres in multi-
family zones (Table 2). City Hall is located in a Commercial Office zone, while other key civic
buildings such as the Post Office and the Main Fire Station are located in the Town Center
and City Hall. Many of the remaining public buildings, schools, recreational facilities and
places of religious worship are located in residential or public zones.” [Land Use Element, II
Existing Conditions and Trends, Areas outside the Town Center] 
 
"(c) “OUTSIDE THE TOWN CENTER (1) The community needs to accommodate two
important planning values — maintaining the existing single family residential character of
the Island, while at the same time planning for population and housing growth.” [Land Use
Element, IV. Land Use Issues, Outside the Town Center (1)] 
 
"(2) A primary component of the housing element is the City’s desire to protect single-
family residential neighborhoods through development regulations and other City codes
which restrict the bulk and scale of buildings, control noise and nuisances, minimize the
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impact of non-residential uses and help preserve the natural environment. City code
provisions were specifically designed to protect residential areas from incompatible uses
and promote bulk and scale consistent with the existing neighborhood character. This
includes limiting the size and scope of nonresidential uses to be consistent with existing
neighborhood character. 
 
"(a) “Housing Element III. Neighborhood Quality Mercer Island single family neighborhoods
pride themselves on their narrow, quiet streets and dense plantings. The City protects
these neighborhoods through development regulations and other City codes which restrict
the bulk and scale of buildings, control noise and nuisances, minimize the impact of non-
residential uses and help preserve the natural environment. Parks, open spaces and trails
also contribute to the neighborhood quality.” [Housing Element, III. Neighborhood
Quality] 
 
"(b) “GOAL 1: - Ensure that single family and multi-family neighborhoods provide safe and
attractive living environments, and are compatible in quality, design and intensity with
surrounding land uses, traffic patterns, public facilities and sensitive environmental
features. 1.1 Ensure that zoning and City code provisions protect residential areas from
incompatible uses and promote bulk and scale consistent with the existing neighborhood
character.” [Housing Element, III. Neighborhood Quality, Goal 1.1] 
 
"(3) The Comprehensive Plan evidences an intent to retain certain non-residential
structures located in residential zones. However, the Comprehensive Plan is silent on
whether such structures would be eligible for variances from otherwise applicable
numerical standards. 
 
" (a) “GOAL 17: - With the exception of allowing residential development, commercial
designations and permitted uses under current zoning will not change. 17.4 Social and
recreation clubs, schools, and religious institutions are predominantly located in single
family residential areas of the Island. Development regulation should reflect the desire to
retain viable and healthy social, recreational, educational, and religious organizations as
community assets which are essential for the mental, physical and spiritual health of
Mercer Island.” [Land Use Elements, IV Land Use Issues Outside the Town Center] 
 
"(4) The Comprehensive Plan also evidences an intent to preserve existing conditions and
to generally permit changes only through amendments to the development code, rather
than through granting numerous variances to that development code. At the same
Development Code Interpretation 22-004 November 21, 2022 Page 6 of 8 time, there is also
recognition that some non-residential structures and uses are compatible with residential
zones. 
 
 "(a) “GOAL 15: - Mercer Island should remain principally a low density, single family



residential community. 
 
"15.1 Existing land use policies, which strongly support the preservation of existing
conditions in the single family residential zones, will continue to apply. Changes to the
zoning code or development standards will be accomplished through code amendments. 
 
"15.2 Residential densities in single family areas will generally continue to occur at three to
five units per acre, commensurate with current zoning. However, some adjustments may
be made to allow the development of innovative housing types, such as accessory dwelling
units and compact courtyard homes at slightly higher densities as outlined in the Housing
Element. … 
 
"15.4 As a primarily single family residential community with a high percentage of
developed land, the community cannot provide for all types of land uses. Certain activities
will be considered incompatible with present uses. Incompatible uses include landfills,
correctional facilities, zoos and airports. Compatible permitted uses such as education,
recreation, open spaces, government social services and religious activities will be
encouraged.” [Land Use Elements, IV Land Use Issues Outside the Town Center]."
 
 
How can the comprehensive plan prohibit a CUP from applying let alone obtaining variances
for greater regulatory limits in the single-family residential zone but allow that same CUP to
change the zoning from SFH residential to CO?  That is just absurd.
 
 
 
7.  AMENDMENT 18 IS EITHER AN ILLEGAL SPOT ZONE OR MUST BE AVAILABLE TO EVERY
OTHER CUP AND PROPERTY OWNER IN THE RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY ZONE.
 
 
MICC 19.15.240 states:
 
 

19.15.240 - Reclassification of property (rezones).  Chapter 19.15 -
ADMINISTRATION | City Code | Mercer Island, WA | Municode Library
 
"C.  Criteria.  The city council may approve a rezone only if all of the following criteria are met:
 
"4.  The proposed reclassification does not constitute an illegal site-specific spot zone."
 
Amendment 18 clearly states in its application that it is a site-specific rezone ( a new criterion on the
application in 2023).  Staff's report states amendment 18 is designed to be site specific.  And yet
staff's report is silent on this critical issue and legal analysis.
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More concerning is Amendment 18 will not be site specific.  The council cannot grant such an
extraordinary rezone to one conditional use permit and not another, and neither can it deny such a
rezone to a conforming use in the same zone such as a single-family home.  
 
This rezone has never been allowed in the history of Mercer Island and will effectively eliminate the
single family zones on Mercer Island and the elements in the comprehensive plan that apply to the
single-family zones, because either amendment 18 is an illegal site specific rezone, or the ability to
rezone residential single family zoned property to CO will apply to every non-conforming use such as
a CUP, and every conforming use such as a single family house.
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From: Dan Thompson
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 12:20 PM
To: Alison Van Gorp <alison.vangorp@mercergov.org>
Cc: jeff.thomas@mercerisland.gov <jeff.thomas@mercerisland.gov>; jessi.bon@mercergov.org
<jessi.bon@mercergov.org>; planning.commission@mercerisland.gov
<planning.commission@mercerisland.gov>; council@mercergov.org <council@mercergov.org>
Subject: Nov. 15 Planning Commission Meeting On 2024 Annual Docket of Proposed
Comprehensive Plan and Development Code Amendments/Housekeeping
 
Dear Alison, this email is to address a few housekeeping issues with the PC's Nov. 15
meeting.  I don't think the agenda packet has been issued, but the suggested amendments
can be found at 2024 Annual Docket of Proposed Comprehensive Plan and Development
Code Amendments | Let's Talk Mercer Island (mercergov.org).  I plan to submit written
comments later on all the suggested amendments.
 
1  Many of the planning commission members are new and have little institutional
knowledge of the 2017 RDS rewrite or past efforts of CUP's to obtain preferential
regulatory limits in a SFH zone, let alone land use expertise, such as the community
facilities zone or MICA in Mercerdale Park, and the turmoil those issues raised.  The PC and
council also were not involved in the recent litigation by the JCC to obtain variances as a
CUP in a SFH zone so are probably unaware of that litigation and AI 22-004 attached to
Matt Goldbach's suggested amendments as exh. 2.  I hope commission members are
reading the suggested amendments and exhibits already, and have some way of learning of
past amendments and the blood and treasure spent on unwise amendments, especially in
2018.  I think the CPD's agenda packet needs to recite this history.
 
2  Matt Goldbach has two suggested amendments and has been allotted 10 minutes to
speak on both.  However Matt is undergoing heart tests and has asked that I be allowed to
speak to the PC in his place, and I have agreed to do that.
 
3  I have five suggested amendments that appear to be added to the docket for 2024
already, dating from 2020 but in the past reserved until the review of the RDS is
undertaken.  The irony is I don't think there is space or time on the PC's 2024 docket for
any of the suggested amendments that have been filed, even including my discrete
amendments, and mine really should be discussed and adopted when the review of the
RDS finally comes up, and we know for sure the DOC regulations under HB 1110 which
makes my suggested amendments even more important.  I think I can address my five
suggested amendments in five minutes.
 
4  I would also like three minutes to address the other suggested amendments.  Quite
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honestly, the only one I think should be formally added to the 2024 docket and pursued is
the city's amendment for a non-conforming temporary use ordinance, although the
suggestion is sparse on details, which is vastly different than the Country Club's suggested
amendment, as long as the city's suggested amendment incorporates these key elements
in any temporary use amendment:
 
 
A  The non-conforming use is truly temporary.  Six months/year or 30 weekends/year is not
temporary.
 
B  The temporary use does not exceed the regulatory limits for the zone.  Use and
regulatory limits are two entirely different things.  A variance is required for a temporary
exception to the zone's regulatory limits.
 
C  There are restrictions on time of day/night, noise, light, traffic, parking, and so on.  The
examples given by the CPD for a private temporary use are probably off base because no
private citizen goes through the hassle or cost to obtain a temporary use permit for
something like a wedding or party at their home.  This amendment is about the city's non-
conforming temporary use.
 
D  The property setbacks are part of the consideration of the temporary use.  For example,
a temporary use at the MICEC which has huge setbacks from any other residential property
is much different than a temporary use on a residential property with a 5' or 10' setback
from the adjacent house.
 
E  The permit is not Type I without prior citizen notice.  The absence of notice for a non-
conforming temporary use is abusive for the neighbors who must be able to plan.
 
 
Thank you.
 
 
 

Daniel Thompson
Thompson & Delay
Attorneys at Law
80th Avenue Professional Building
2955 80th Ave SE, Suite 202
Mercer Island, WA 98040
Phone: (206) 622-0670
Fax: (206) 622-3965
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Deb Estrada

From: Andrea Larson
Sent: Monday, November 13, 2023 9:10 AM
To: Alison Van Gorp; Deb Estrada
Subject: FW: SJCC Request to Rezone Large Residential Land Parcels to Commercial Office

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

 

From: Michele Kohorn <mref1@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Friday, November 10, 2023 2:40 PM 
To: Planning Commission <Planning.Commission@mercergov.org> 
Subject: SJCC Request to Rezone Large Residential Land Parcels to Commercial Office 
 

Dear Mercer Island Planning Commission, 

Please recommend that the Mercer Island City Council places the Stroum Jewish Community 
Center’s request to rezone their large residential land parcels to Commercial Office on the docket, 
with action taken in 2024. 

For over 54 years, the SJCC has served Mercer Island residents with programs for all ages and all 
are welcome. However, this building is old, is not ADA compliant, needs a working HVAC system 
and it features a swimming pool that is long past its usefulness. 

It’s time for a substantive, accessible, and sustainable redevelopment, yet the current residential 
zoning makes this nearly impossible. A rezone to Commercial Office property would significantly 
facilitate this remodel while honoring the neighborhood integrity and specific interests of the 
proximate neighbors. 

For over 54 years, the SJCC has operated as a vital community asset. It would be a loss for the 
broad Mercer Island community to not support the modernization of this facility. Further, this 
request affects the SJCC ONLY, and will not have any impact on any other facility or institution on 
the Island. 
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The time to support the future of the Stroum Jewish Community Center on Mercer Island is now. 

Thank you for your support. 

Michele Kohorn 

SJCC Board Member 
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Deb Estrada

From: Andrea Larson
Sent: Monday, November 13, 2023 9:10 AM
To: Alison Van Gorp; Deb Estrada
Subject: FW: Assistance and Support 

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

 

From: Tamar Boden <tamar_boden@hotmail.com>  
Sent: Friday, November 10, 2023 2:55 PM 
To: Planning Commission <Planning.Commission@mercergov.org> 
Subject: Assistance and Support  
 
   

Dear Mercer Island Planning Commission, 

Please recommend that the Mercer Island City Council places the Stroum Jewish Community Center’s request 
to rezone their large residential land parcels to Commercial Office on the docket, with action taken in 2024.  

For over 54 years, the SJCC has served Mercer Island residents with programs for all ages and all are welcome. 
However, this building is old, is not ADA compliant, needs a working HVAC system and it features a swimming 
pool that is long past its usefulness. 

It’s time for a substantive, accessible, and sustainable redevelopment, yet the current residential zoning 
makes this nearly impossible. A rezone to Commercial Office property would significantly facilitate this 
remodel while honoring the neighborhood integrity and specific interests of the proximate neighbors. 

For over 54 years, the SJCC has operated as a vital community asset. It would be a loss for the broad Mercer 
Island community to not support the modernization of this facility. Further, this request affects the SJCC ONLY, 
and will not have any impact on any other facility or institution on the Island. 

The time to support the future of the Stroum Jewish Community Center on Mercer Island is now. 
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Thank you for your support. 

 
Tamar Boden  
7444 Mercer Terrace Drive 
Mercer Island, WA 98040 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
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Deb Estrada

From: Andrea Larson
Sent: Monday, November 13, 2023 9:11 AM
To: Alison Van Gorp; Deb Estrada
Subject: FW: Please Support the SJCC Plan!

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

 

From: kmuscatel@aol.com <kmuscatel@aol.com>  
Sent: Friday, November 10, 2023 5:41 PM 
To: Planning Commission <Planning.Commission@mercergov.org> 
Subject: Fw: Please Support the SJCC Plan! 
 

Dear Planning Commission, 
 

I grew up at the Stroum Jewish Community Center (SJCC).  I went to pre‐school there, I took 
swimming lessons there, I did gymnastics there, I played youth basketball there, I did BBYO there, 
I have always worked out there, I met my husband there, my kids attended pre‐school there, and 
now our son attends BBYO there.  I served on the SJCC board for over ten years, also serving as 
President of the board.  The time is now for "the J," and the rezone of the J's land from residential 
to commercial is long overdue. The J is the heart of the Jewish people in the Seattle area ‐‐ and 
has honestly become a center for many Islanders ages 0‐99‐‐regardless of religious affiliation.   
 

Please recommend that the Mercer Island City Council places the Stroum Jewish Community 
Center’s request to rezone their large residential land parcels to Commercial Office on the docket, 
with action taken in 2024. 
For my entire life, the SJCC has served Mercer Island residents with programs for all people ‐‐ not 
just Jewish people ‐‐ of all ages, all races, all economic backgrounds, all ethnicities. However, this 
building is old, is not ADA compliant, needs a working HVAC system and it features a swimming 
pool that is long past its usefulness. 

Please help us.  It’s time for a substantive, accessible, and sustainable redevelopment, yet the 
current residential zoning makes this nearly impossible. A rezone to Commercial Office property 
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would significantly facilitate this remodel while honoring the neighborhood integrity and specific 
interests of the proximate neighbors. 

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

Kim Waldbaum (206) 250.5994 
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Deb Estrada

From: Andrea Larson
Sent: Monday, November 13, 2023 9:12 AM
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

 

From: Jay Behar <jay@behars.com>  
Sent: Sunday, November 12, 2023 6:58 PM 
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

 
Jay 
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Jay Behar 
Execu ve Director – Pacific Furniture Dealers 
P: (206) 465‐2520 – E: jay@behars.com 
W: www.pacificfurnituredealers.com 
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Deb Estrada

From: Andrea Larson
Sent: Monday, November 13, 2023 9:11 AM
To: Alison Van Gorp; Deb Estrada
Subject: FW: Public comments for Amendment 18
Attachments: Decl of John Hall.pdf; Exhibit index and Exhibits in Support of Decl. of John Hall.pdf

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

 

From: John Michael Hall <velooce@comcast.net>  
Sent: Friday, November 10, 2023 4:21 PM 
To: Alison Van Gorp <alison.vangorp@mercergov.org> 
Cc: Planning Commission <Planning.Commission@mercergov.org>; Council <council@mercergov.org>; 
blkship@yahoo.com; John Hall <velooce@comcast.net> 
Subject: Public comments for Amendment 18 

 
Dear Alison, please consider these my public comments for the Nov. 15 planning commission meeting on 
amendment 18, the JCC's suggested amendment to change the zoning of their residential properties to 
commercial/office, and the attached declaration with exhibits I submitted in support of the city's  defense of 
the appeal the JCC filed over the city's denial of the JCC's application for variances. 
 
I believe the history of this property, and the attempts over the last 40 years of the JCC to obtain greater 
regulatory limits than allowed in the residential zone, are very important to the discussion and vote on Nov. 
15, and my declaration and the exhibits explain the history. 
 
I am also disappointed staff's report to the planning commission was silent on the impact this upzone will have 
on the surrounding residential neighborhoods, and that is addressed in my attached declaration which I hope 
will help guide the planning commission's decision and create a complete record for the council and any 
appeal. 
 
John Hall 
9970 S.E. 40th Street 
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

 

From: pilot131@aol.com <pilot131@aol.com>  
Sent: Sunday, November 12, 2023 7:18 PM 
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
 
Sincerely, 
 
Thomas Jacobs 
4412 E Mercer Way 
Mercer Island, Wa 98040 
 
resident for over 45 years 
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Deb Estrada

From: Andrea Larson
Sent: Monday, November 13, 2023 9:13 AM
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

 

From: Tamar Reynard <tlreynard1127@gmail.com>  
Sent: Sunday, November 12, 2023 8:05 PM 
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
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